
Monday, 30 April 2018

SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL
Delegated Executive Decisions

On Thursday, 10 May 2018, on the rising of the meeting of the Management Team, the 
following report(s) will be considered under powers delegated to Portfolio Holders, the Chief 
Executive and Directors for the discharge of the Council’s Cabinet functions carried out within their 
area of responsibility.

Copies of these reports have been sent to the relevant Portfolio Holders (and all Members of the 
Cabinet for information), the Chief Executive, all Directors and the Monitoring Officer.

Cabinet Members, or any of the other consultees, may object to the report within five working days 
- by 5.00 p.m. on, Wednesday, 9 May 2018 - by notifying the Officer named on the report of the 
objection and requesting that the matter be referred to the next meeting of the Cabinet for 
determination.

Page Nos.
PART I 

1 NOMINATION TO LIST ASSETS OF COMMUNITY VALUE 3 - 20

To consider a nomination to list Lloyds Bank, Ulverston, LA12 7HR, as an Asset 
of Community Value.

PART II 

Private Section (exempt reasons under Schedule 12A of the Local Government 
Act 1972, as amended by the Local Government (Access to Information) 
(Variation) Order 2006, specified by way of paragraph number)
There are no items in this part of the agenda.

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



South Lakeland District Council
DELEGATED EXECUTIVE DECISION

Date of proposed decision: 10TH May 2018
Nomination to list Assets of Community Value 

PORTFOLIO: Economy and Assets Portfolio Holder

DECISION MAKER: David Sykes – Director People and Places

REPORT AUTHOR: Jemma Fells – Project Support Officer

WARDS: Ulverston Town

KEY DECISION NO: N/A

1.0 EXPECTED OUTCOME
1.1 Entry of the property currently occupied by Lloyds bank in Ulverston onto the 

list of unsuccessful nominations of Assets of Community Value.
2.0 PROPOSED DECISION
2.1 It is proposed that Lloyds Bank, Union Street, Ulverston, Cumbria, LA12 

7HR be entered onto South Lakeland District Council’s list of 
unsuccessful nominations of Assets of Community Value.

3.0 BACKGROUND AND PROPOSALS
3.1 A nomination to list an asset of community value was submitted by Ulverston 

Town Council on the 19th February 2018. 
3.2 Lloyds currently own the building and it is run as a commercial bank. The 

building is also Grade 2 Listed. 
3.3 The asset lies within the administrative boundaries of South Lakeland and 

Ulverston Town Ward.
3.4 Ulverston Town Council are entitled under 89(2)b(i) of the Localism Act 2011 

to make a community nomination in respect of the asset.   
3.5 In accordance with legislative requirements Ulverston Town Council are 

eligible to nominate and have a local connection to the asset nominated.  
3.6 Section 88 of the Localism Act 2011 sets out those uses of land which may 

result in a property being considered an asset of community value.  They are 
uses that further either the social wellbeing or social interests of the local 
community.  It goes on to say that such use cannot be an “ancillary use”.  
Social interests are then defined as cultural interests, recreational interests or 
sporting interests.

Page 3

Item No.1



3.7 It is considered that the use of the building as a commercial bank does not 
represent a use that furthers the social wellbeing or social interest of the 
community.  Whilst it is accepted that there may be some social benefit to 
those people who use the bank, it is reasonable to suggest such use is 
ancillary to the building’s use as a bank.  The assessment forms set out the 
reasons for reaching this conclusion.

3.8 In summary, the asset does not currently, meet the social wellbeing or social 
interests (cultural, recreational and/or sporting interests) of the community in 
its current use as a commercial bank, nor is there a time in the recent past 
when it has done so. As detailed in the assessment it is intended to change 
the use of the premises from commercial to community use.  This cannot be 
considered as the legislation is there to protect community buildings which are 
currently or have been in the recent past used to meet the social wellbeing or 
social interests of a community.

3.9 The Council has, in the past, included nominations for banks on the list of 
unsuccessful nominations for example, Sedbergh Parish Council’s nomination 
for Barclays Bank and Natwest Bank buildings.  This has been for the same 
reasons as set out in this report

4.0 CONSULTATION
4.1 The local ward member has been consulted and a letter was sent to Lloyds on 

4th April 2018 to advise and ask for any comments. There has been no 
response from either to date.

5.0 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS
5.1 There are no alternative options as to list this building as an asset of 

community value would be contrary to the requirements of the legislation

6.0 LINKS TO COUNCIL PRIORITIES
6.1 An ambition of the Council Plan 2014-2019 is as follows:

“Through community engagement and facilitation we will make best use of our 
assets, and
We will work with local organisations and communities to look at opportunities 
to maximise the use of our community buildings.”

7.0 IMPLICATIONS
7.1 Financial and Resources
7.1.1 There are no financial or resources implications. 
7.2 Human Resources
7.2.1 There are no human resources implications. 
7.3 Legal
7.3.1 Under Section 87 of the Localism Act 2011 the Council must maintain a list of 

assets of community value.
7.3.2 Section 88 of the Localism Act 2011 states that a building or other land is an 

asset of community value if, in the opinion of the authority:

Page 4



 the current (ancillary) use of the building or other land furthers 
the social wellbeing or social interests of the local community.

 there is evidence that there is a non-ancillary use of the building 
or other land which can further the social wellbeing or social 
interests of the local community.

A building or other land is not an asset of community value if, in the opinion of 
the local authority:

 in the recent past the actual use of the building or other land 
was not used to furthered the social wellbeing or interests of the 
local community

 there is evidence that there is not a non-ancillary use of the 
building or other land which can further the social wellbeing or 
social interests of the local community.

7.4 Social, Economic and Environmental
7.4.1 A sustainability impact assessment has not been carried out.  A building or 

other land is an asset of community value if its main use has recently been or 
is presently used to further the social wellbeing or social interests of the local 
community and could do so in the future.  The Localism Act 2011 states that 
social interests include cultural, recreational and sporting interests.

7.4.2 The inclusion of assets on the List of Assets of Community Value is recorded 
as a local land charge under the Local Land Charges Act 1975.  The Council 
is required under Schedule 4 of the Assets of Community Value (England) 
Regulation 2012 to apply to the Land Registry for a restriction to be added to 
the registered title of the land that “no transfer or lease is to be registered 
without a certificate signed by a conveyancer that the transfer or lease did not 
contravene Section 95(1) of the Localism Act 2011”.

7.5 Equality and Diversity
7.5.1 The Impact Assessment published by Department for Communities and Local 

Government (DCLG) indicates there are no foreseeable adverse impacts on 
any single equality group arising out of the legislation relating to Assets of 
Community Value.

7.6 Risk
Risk Consequence Controls required

Timescales for 
responses and 
publication of lists 

Compliance for 
responses to 
nominations, 
notifications and the 
publication of lists of 
successful and 
unsuccessful 
nominations

Appropriate procedures 
put in place to achieve 
the Council’s 
obligations

Page 5



Risk Consequence Controls required

Administer any initial 
appeals in respect of 
either nominations or 
compensation 
decisions

Meeting the 
requirements expected 
of the council

Appropriate procedures 
put in place to achieve 
the Council’s 
obligations

Listed asset of 
community value not 
added to the local land 
charge register

Reputational challenge Appropriate procedures 
put in place to achieve 
the Council’s 
obligations

CONTACT OFFICERS 
Jemma Fells– Project Support Officer: jemma.fells@southlakeland.gov.uk
APPENDICES ATTACHED TO THIS REPORT 

Appendix No.
1 Nomination form submitted by Ulverston Town Council. 

2 Nomination form assessment by SLDC project support officer

3 Map of Lloyds Bank and surrounding area submitted by 
Ulverston Town Council.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS AVAILABLE
 Community Right to Bid: Non-statutory advice note for local authorities 

(October 2012)

 Community Right to Bid – Impact Assessment Localism Act 2011 

 The Assets of Community Value (England) Regulations (2012)

 Implementing the New Community Right to Bid Effectively - A Practical 
Guide for Local Authorities 

 CEX/98 – Community Right to Bid 

Page 6

http://www.communities.gov.uk/documents/communities/pdf/2229703.pdf
http://www.communities.gov.uk/documents/communities/pdf/2168557.pdf
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukdsi/2012/9780111526293/content
http://www.atu.org.uk/Document.ashx?ID=441
http://www.atu.org.uk/Document.ashx?ID=441
http://democracy.southlakeland.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=121&MId=3197


TRACKING INFORMATION
Assistant 
Director

Portfolio 
Holder

Solicitor to the 
Council

SMT Scrutiny 
Committee

23/04/18 N/A 20/04/18 26/04/18 N/A

Executive 
(Cabinet)

Committee Council Section 151 
Officer

Monitoring 
Officer

10/05/18 10/05/18 N/A 20/04/18 20/04/18

Human 
Resource 
Services 
Manager

Leader Ward 
Councillor(s)

20/04/18 N/A 04/04/18

Note – Report authors must consult the relevant Portfolio Holder, members of 
the Senior Management Team, the Monitoring Officer, and any other interested 
parties before a decision can be taken. If any objections are received, they 
must be reported at the meeting before the decision is taken.

Signed: Decision 
Maker’s 
title:

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 8



Appendix 1

Community Right to Bid – Nomination Form
Version 2
April 2016

South Lakeland District Council – 
Asset of Community Value Nomination Form

Before completing this form please read the material at www.southlakeland.gov.uk 

Section A – Organisation

Name of organisation
Ulverston Town Council

Address (including 
postcode)

Town Council Office, County Square, Ulverston, Cumbria, 
LA12 7LZ

Contact (name) Jayne Kendall

Position in organisation Town Clerk

Address of contact 
(including postcode)

As above

Telephone no. 01229 585778

Email address admin@ulverstoncouncil.org.uk

Type of organisation

Description Applying as: Registration no. of charity 
and/or company (if applicable)

Neighbourhood forum (as defined 
by in Localism Act)
Parish Council X
Charity
Community interest group
Unincorporated body
Company limited by guarantee
Industrial and provident society

A1. Local Connection
Your organisation must have a local connection, which means that its activities are wholly or partially 
concerned with the administrative area of South Lakeland District Council or neighbouring authority.

Ulverston Town Council is the parish council for all wards in Ulverston, which include the TSB Building on 
Union Street

Page 9

http://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/


Appendix 1

Community Right to Bid – Nomination Form
Version 2
April 2016

A2. Number of members registered to vote locally (unincorporated bodies only)

A3. Distribution of surplus funds (certain types of organisations – see below)

A4. Your organisations rules: Please send us the relevant type of document for your 
organisation and indicate which it is:

Please tick:
Memorandum and Articles of Association (for a company)
Trust Deed (for a trust)
Constitution and/or rules (for other organisations) Standing orders

Section B – Information on the nomination

What is being nominated Lloyds TSB Bank.

Name of the premises/land Lloyds TSB Bank, 

Address (including postcode) Union Street, Ulverston, Cumbria, LA12 7HR

B1. The nomination form must include a map, which clearly states the boundaries of the 
premises or land that you are nominating. Please include with the nomination form.

B2. Owners and other with interests in the building or land:

Name(s) Address(es)
Current 
occupants Lloyds TSB Bank Union Street, Ulverston, Cumbria,  

LA12 7HR

Current or last 
known details of 

Lloyds TSB Bank Lloyds TSB, 25 Gresham Street, London 
EC2V 7HN

In the case of unincorporated bodies at least 21 of the members must be registered to vote locally. If they are 
registered to vote in a neighbouring local authority please indicate where.

If your organisation is an unincorporated body, a company limited by guarantee, or an industrial and 
provident society, its rules must provide that any surplus funds are not distributed to members. Surplus funds 
must be applied in part or whole for the benefit of the local area. If relevant, please confirm that this is the 
case.

Page 10



Appendix 1

Community Right to Bid – Nomination Form
Version 2
April 2016

those owning the 
freehold of the 
land

Current or last 
known details of 
those having a 
leasehold interest 
in the land

SLDC
United Utilities

999-year lease on clock tower
999-lease on the electricity substation.

B3. Why do you think the building or land is of community value?

Does this use further the social 
well-being and social interest of 
the community?

Include information on:
 the current level of use 

and who uses it
 any used by particular 

communities of interest 
or need

Ulverston Town Council is the first tier of Local 
Government. It is the town council’s responsibility to 
take a local oversight of Ulverston and to represent the 
interests of the local community through elected 
members.

The building is owned and operated by Lloyds TSB as 
a bank, although with reduced hours.  Elected 
members are concerned that the bank may close in the 
medium or long term, as evidenced by other banks in 
Ulverston, leaving an empty building, 

Many public buildings have recently closed in 
Ulverston, meaning there is a lack of public buildings 
which could provide a facility for the community, local 
groups/charities. Recently there have been closures of 
the town hall, which provided accommodation for a 
number of charities and organisations including the 
town council together with the police station and 
several County Council offices.  

Ulverston Town Council wish to ensure that that 
opportunity is available to the council to consider 
acquiring the building for the community, by listing the 
building as an asset of community value, should the 
present owners ever put the building up for sale. 

By be given early notice of a sale, council and the 
community can then take a view about the future usage 
viability and ownership of the building

What do communities gain from 
their use of the asset and what 
would be the impact if it were 
lost?

Communities would gain the opportunity to use a large 
multi-purpose and very important historic building 
within the town, which also includes the town clock. 
Subject to a business plan, agreement and 
permissions, the building could make suitable premises 
for use by the town council for example, together with 
other agencies and local organisations, and perform 
the function of the recently closed town hall. 

Page 11



Appendix 1

Community Right to Bid – Nomination Form
Version 2
April 2016

Following the closure of the town hall, the town council 
has lost its historic chamber, which also used to be 
used as a central venus for weddings. As previously 
recorded, many public buildings have been closed and 
converted to accommodation – including the town hall

The building is Grade 2 listed, and is recorded by Sir 
Nikolaus Pevsner as:  ‘..the best building in the town..’

What is the nature of social well 
being and social interest which 
the asset supports?

Does the use of the asset do 
any of the following:

 Reduce isolation
 Address the needs of 

disadvantage members 
of the community

 Reach vulnerable people
 Support community 

cohesion and 
involvement

 Enable communities to 
be self supporting

 Increase access to 
positive activities

The building does not currently support any of these 
issues as it is a commercial bank, and the town council 
hopes that this will continue for the foreseeable future.  

The object of this application is to make the case that 
this it could do many of these things very well if the 
opportunity became available. By listing the building as 
an Asset of Community value, the council and 
community would be giving the chance to develop 
plans by being given early warning of any intention to 
dispose of the building

Does the community feel 
strongly that the asset should be 
retained as a community asset?

Elected members recognise that whilst the building is 
occupied by the bank, it remains an important building 
in the town which could provide a community facility.   

Members are aware at the great concern that has been 
expressed by the community when large organisations 
close in the town and as a consequence building are 
closed, removing community facilities. 

When this issue was placed on the council agenda for 
members to discuss it created a lot of positive interest 

Page 12



Appendix 1

Community Right to Bid – Nomination Form
Version 2
April 2016

and those who expressed an opinion were of the view 
that this was the correct course of action to take. 

Clearly the desirable outcome is for the building to 
continue as a bank providing an important service to 
the community.

Could the asset realistically 
continue to be used for this or 
another qualifying community 
purpose (or could this be 
achieved within the next five 
years)?

The town council would prefer the building to continue 
to be occupied and operated as a bank and as an 
important service for the town.  It is however, unusual 
in Ulverston for the bank to still own a building and not 
lease it. 

The town council is being prudent, and taking into 
account the recent history of many banks in Ulverston 
(Nat West, HSBC) closing their service, and wishes to 
ensure that the community has some say in the future 
of the building if the bank does close and put the 
building up for sale. 

The town council, as a precepting organisation, and 
subject to business planning, would make every effort 
to ensure that the building could be used by the 
community and remain as a community asset. 

Section C – Submitting this nomination

C1. Please include the following before submitting your application:
 The rules of your organisation
 A map of the nominated building or land

C2. Signature:

By signing your name (if submitting by post) or typing it (if submitting by email) you are confirming that the 
contents of this form are correct, to the best of your knowledge.

C3. Where to send this form:

By post to: Partnerships and Organisational Development Team, South Lakeland District 
Council, South Lakeland House, Lowther Street, Kendal, LA9 4DQ

By email to: policy@southlakeland.gov.uk

Jayne Kendall

Page 13

mailto:policy@southlakeland.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank

Page 14



Appendix 2

Asset of Community Value Assessment – South Lakeland District Council

Nominated By: Ulverston Town Council 
Number of Nominations: One 
Date of Submission: Monday 19 February 2018
Address of Nomination: Lloyds Bank, Union Street, Ulverston, Cumbria, LA12 7HR
Date of DED: 10th May 2018

Section One - Eligible Criteria

Eligible Criteria YES NO Further Comments
Is the nominating body eligible to 
nominate?

Does the nominating body have a 
connection to the nomination?
Is the nominated asset outside of one of 
the categories that cannot be assets of 
community value?

Section Two – Determining Usage

YES NO Further Comments
1.) Is there evidence of the use being 
described in the nomination?

The building is currently a 
commercial bank, the intention of 
the town council would be to turn 
this into a town hall/community 
building.

Is this the main, and non-ancillary, use 
of the land or premises?
Or has it been its use within the last 12 
months?

YES NO Further Comments
2.) Does this use further the social well-
being and social interest of the 
community?

There is very little evidence to 
suggest that the bank furthers the 
social wellbeing or interest of the 
community. 

What is the current level of use of the 
asset and who uses it?

There is not any mention in the 
nomination of the level of usage. 
However it does mention that other 
banks in the town have closed, and 
the town council believe it is likely 
that this bank may also close. 

Is it used by particular communities of 
interest or need?

There is no mention of this in the 
nomination however in it’s current 
use as a bank, there are a number of 
provisions for disabled access. The 

Page 15



Appendix 2

bank is likely to appeal to an older 
population and groups that may not 
be comfortable/lack the resources 
to use internet banking. 

What do communities gain from their 
use of the asset and what would be the 
impact if it were lost?

Ulverston Town Council feel that if 
the asset was lost the community 
would lose another potential public 
facility. 

YES NO Further Comments
3.) What is the nature of social well 
being and social interest which the 
asset particularly supports?
Does the use of the asset do the 
following:

 Reduce isolation You could argue visiting a bank 
reduces isolation – but it is main use 
is still not a social interest.

 Address the needs of 
disadvantage members of the 
community

 Reach vulnerable people

 Support community cohesion 
and involvement

 Enable communities to be self 
supporting

 Increase access to positive 
activities

4.) Does the community feel strongly that the 
asset should be retained as a community asset?

It is reported that when discussed  on a council 
agenda members supported the view that the 
building should be listed and addresses 
residents concern over a lack of community 
buildings

5.) Could the asset realistically continue to be 
used for this or another qualifying community 
purpose (or could this be achieved within the 
next five years)?

The town council would prefer the building to 
continue to be occupied and operated as it’s 
current use as a bank and as an important 
service for the town.  The town council, as a 
precepting organisation, and subject to 
business planning, would make every effort to 
ensure that the building could be used by the 
community and remain as a community asset. 

Page 16



Appendix 2

Section Four - Non-ancillary use of the building or other land.

Officers are asked to consider the following questions, where appropriate, in relation to non-
ancillary usage:

Yes No Comments
Has the building/land legal requirement 
for this usage changed significantly that 
the asset is not fit for purpose?
Could the asset be made fit for purpose 
practically and within reasonable 
resource requirements and within 
timescales?

Recommendation and reasons for:

I would recommend Lloyds Bank be entered onto South Lakeland District Council’s list of 
unsuccessful nominations of Assets of Community Value. The main reason is that the bank’s 
current and past principal use is as a commercial business. This use cannot be said to further the 
community’s social well-being or social interests. This is a core requirement in order to be listed as 
an asset of community value as per section 88 of the Localism Act.

Secondly, other bank buildings have been nominated in the past and have been unsuccessful (by 
Sedbergh Parish Council 2015). This precedent should be upheld.

To summarise, the desire of the group to have the opportunity to purchase the building as a 
potential public space should it cease from being a bank is in the spirit of the legislation, however, 
a commercial bank cannot be considered to be a current or future asset of community value and 
therefore cannot be listed according to current legislation guidance.

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 18



Appendix 3

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 20


	Agenda
	1 Nomination to List Assets of Community Value
	Nomination to List Assets of Community Value - Lloyds Bank - Appendix 1
	Nomination to List Assets of Community Value - Lloyds Bank - Appendix 2
	Nomination to List Assets of Community Value - Lloyds Bank - Appendix 3


